
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – JULY 22, 2024 
City Council Chambers, City Hall 
900 SE Douglas Avenue, Roseburg, Oregon  97470

Public Online Access: 
City website at https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos
Facebook Live at www.Facebook.com/CityofRoseburg

Comments on Agenda Items and Audience Participation can be provided in person or electronically via Zoom. See 

Audience Participation Information for instructions on how to participate in meetings. 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting
1. Call to Order – Mayor Larry Rich

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call
Tom Michalek Andrea Zielinski Kylee Rummel  
David Mohr Ellen Porter  Ruth Smith 
Patrice Sipos Shelley Briggs Loosley 

3. Mayor Reports

4. Commission Reports/Council Ward Reports

5. Audience Participation – In Person or via Zoom/See Information on the Reverse

6. Consent Agenda
A. June 24, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes
B. OLCC – New Outlet – The Majestic Theater, LLC located at 431 SE Main Street
C. OLCC – New Outlet – Muchas Gracias Mexican Food - Roseburg located at 1144 W. Harvard Ave.
D. OLCC – Change of Ownership – Rosebud Entertainment, LLC dba The Rosebud Theatre located

at 663 SE Jackson Street
E. Resolution No. 2024-15 – Correcting Airport Facilities Fees
F. FAA Grant Acceptance – Extend Taxiway A – Phase II Construction – Resolution No. 2024-16

7. Public Hearings
A. An Ordinance Amending the Roseburg Urban Growth Boundary (UGB), De-Annexing Property,

Amending the Comprehensive Plan Map, Annexing Right-of-Way and Amending the Urban Growth
Management Agreement (UGMA) - File No. CPA-23-002

8. Department Items
A. SE Stephens Water Main Replacement Project Bid Award Recommendation – Project No.

23WA12
B. SE Douglas Avenue Pavement Repairs Project Bid Award Recommendation – Project No.

24PW09
C. Intergovernmental Agreement with Roseburg Urban Sanitary Authority - SE Stephens Water Main

Replacement Project No. 23WA12
D. Douglas Avenue Deer Creek Bridge Project – Intergovernmental Agreement – Revised Change

Order No. 1

9. Items from Mayor, City Council and City Manager

10. Adjourn

11. Executive Session ORS 192.660(2)

Informational 
A. City Manager Activity Report
B. Municipal Court Quarterly Report

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos
http://www.facebook.com/CityofRoseburg
Grace Jelks
Received



AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION INFORMATION 

The Roseburg City Council welcomes and encourages citizen participation at all of our regular meetings, with the 
exception of Executive Sessions, which, by state law, are closed to the public.  To allow Council to deal with business on 
the agenda in a timely fashion, we ask that anyone wishing to address the Council follow these simple guidelines: 

Comments may be provided in one of three ways: 

 IN PERSON during the meeting in the Council Chambers, Roseburg City Hall, 900 SE Douglas Ave.

o Each speaker must provide their name, address, phone number and topic on the Audience Participation
Sign-In Sheet.

 VIA EMAIL by sending an email by 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to info@roseburgor.gov.

o These will be provided to the Council but will not be read out loud during the meeting.  Please include
your name, address and phone number within the email.

 VIRTUALLY during the meeting. Contact the City Recorder by phone (541) 492-6866 or email

(info@roseburgor.gov) by 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to get a link to the meeting.

o Each speaker must provide their name, address, phone number and topic in the email.  Speakers will
need to log or call in prior to the start of the meeting using the link or phone number provided. When
accessing the meeting through the ZOOM link, click “Join Webinar” to join the meeting as an attendee.

All attendees will be held in a “waiting room” until called on to speak.  It is helpful if the speaker can

provide a summary of their comments via email to ensure technology/sound challenges do not limit
Council’s understanding.

 Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the agenda may do so when Council addresses that item.
 Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the Consent Agenda, or on a matter not on the evening’s

agenda, may do so under “Audience Participation.”
1. Speakers will be called by the Mayor in the order in which they signed up.  The Mayor will generally call in-

person speakers prior to calling speakers participating via Zoom.   Each virtual speaker will be transferred
from the “waiting room” into the meeting to provide comments, then moved back to the “waiting room” upon
completion of their comments.

2. Persons addressing the Council in person or virtually must state their name and city of residence for the
record.

TIME LIMITATIONS - A total of 30 minutes shall be allocated for the “Audience Participation” portion of 
the meeting.  With the exception of public hearings, each speaker will be allotted a total of 6 minutes, unless the 
number of speakers will exceed the maximum time.  In this case, the Mayor may choose to decrease the allotted 
time for each speaker in order to hear from a wider audience.  All testimony given shall be new and not have been 
previously presented to Council. 

Audience Participation is a time for the Mayor and Council to receive input from the public. The Council 
may respond to audience comments after “Audience Participation” has been closed or during “Items from 
Mayor, Councilors or City Manager” after completion of the Council’s business agenda.  The Council 
reserves the right to delay any action requested until they are fully informed on the matter. 

ORDER AND DECORUM 
Councilors and citizens shall maintain order and decorum at Council meetings.  Any audience member may be 
directed to leave the meeting if they use unreasonably loud, disruptive, or threatening language, make loud or 
disruptive noise, engage in violent or distracting action, willfully damage furnishings, refuse to obey the rules of 
conduct, or refuse to obey an order of the Mayor or majority of Council.  No signs, posters or placards are allowed 
in the meeting room. 

All speakers and audience members should treat everyone with respect and maintain a welcoming environment.  
Please avoid actions that could be distracting such as cheering, booing, or applause.  Please turn cell phones to 
silent and enter and exit the Council Chambers quietly if the meeting is in progress and take any conversations 
outside the Chambers.   

The City Council meetings are on Facebook Live and available to view on the City website the next day at:  
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos 

The full agenda packet is available on the City’s website at:  
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-agendas 

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-agendas


CONSENT AGENDA A 
07/22/2024 

June 24, 2024 City Council Minutes 1 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

June 24, 2024 

Council President Mohr called the regular meeting of the Roseburg City Council to order at 
7:01 p.m. on June 24, 2024 in the City Hall Council Chambers, 900 SE Douglas Avenue, 
Roseburg, Oregon.   

1. Pledge of Allegiance
Councilor Porter led the pledge of allegiance.

2. ROLL CALL
Present: Councilors Tom Michalek, David Mohr, Ellen Porter, Kylee Rummel, Ruth 

Smith, and Andrea Zielinski 
Absent: Larry Rich, Shelley Briggs Loosley and Patrice Sipos 
Others: City Manager Nikki Messenger (via zoom), City Attorney Jim Forrester, 

Police Chief Gary Klopfenstein, Assistant Fire Chief Dave Newquist, 
Community Development Director Stuart Cowie, Human Resources 
Director John VanWinkle, Library Director Kris Wiley, Public Works 
Director Dawn Easley, Finance Director Ron Harker, City Recorder Amy 
Nytes, and Management Assistant Grace Jelks 

3. Mayor Reports
A. Council President Mohr proclaimed June 19, 2024, as Juneteenth Independence 

Day on behalf of Mayor Rich.  Kenny Wong, Equity Coach – Douglas Education 
Service District, shared information about the Juneteenth Day, as well as 
appreciation for the Council’s recognition.

B. Council President Mohr proclaimed July 2024, as Parks and Recreation Month 
on behalf of Mayor Rich.  Easley shared information about Parks and Recreation 
Month, as well as appreciation for the Council’s recognition.

4. Commission Reports/Council Ward Reports.
The Council took a moment to express their appreciation to Public Works Director Dawn 
Easley wished her well in her new position.
Councilor Zielinski reported on the June 18, 2024 Library Commission meeting. 
Councilor Michalek reported that MedCom is officially disbanded as of July 1, 2024. 
Councilor Rummel reported on the June 19, 2024 Historic Resources Review 
Commission.
Council President Mohr reported on the June 20, 2024 Airport Commission meeting.



CONSENT AGENDA A 
07/22/2024 

June 24, 2024 City Council Minutes  2 
 

5. Audience Participation 
A. Celia VanderVelden, resident, spoke about discrimination in the community. 
B. Jesse Spain, resident, spoke about building a sports complex. 

 
6. Special Presentations 

A. RARE AmeriCorps Member Christian Sala gave a presentation.  Discussion 
ensued. 
Councilor Smith’s comments and questions included what suggestions or advice 
he has to assist with the next RARE AmeriCorps member. 
Councilor Zielinski expressed her appreciation for Sala’s service and Wiley’s 
ability to help people find what they are good at and allow them to learn and 
grow. 
Councilor Rummel shared her contact information with Sala to help him in his 
future career. 
Sala shared that he felt prepared for this role based on the information and 
advice he received from Wiley, and that he is the culmination of her experience 
with previous RARE AmeriCorps members. 
 

7. Consent Agenda 
A. June 10, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes.  

Councilor Zielinski moved to approve the consent agenda.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Rummel and approved with the following vote:  
Councilors Michalek, Mohr, Porter, Rummel, Smith, and Zielinski voted yes.  No 
Councilors voted no.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
8. Resolutions 

A. Harker presented Resolution No. 2024-14 – Appropriation Transfer for Fiscal 
Year 2023-24.  Discussion ensued. 
Councilor Michalek’s comments and questions included whether we can afford it. 
Harker clarified the general fund supports Municipal Court functions, which has a 
strong balance and will not have a negative impact. 
Councilor Porter moved to adopt Resolution No. 2024-14, Authorizing an 
Appropriation Transfer for Fiscal Year 2023-24.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilor Smith and approved with the following vote:  Councilors Michalek, 
Mohr, Porter, Rummel, Smith, and Zielinski voted yes.  No Councilors voted no.  
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

9. Department Items 
A. Easley presented Amendment No. 1 to the Traffic Signal Maintenance 

Intergovernmental Agreement with the Oregon Department of Transportation.  
Discussion ensued. 
Councilor Michalek’s comments and questions included clarification of whether 
money has been set aside. 



CONSENT AGENDA A 
07/22/2024 

June 24, 2024 City Council Minutes  3 
 

Councilor Smith’s comments and questions included whether there are plans for 
adding sustainable equipment. 
Easley clarified that invoices are paid as the work gets done, maintenance is 
budgeted for annually, lights have been upgraded with LED bulbs, and there are 
solar boxes for backup electricity. 
Councilor Porter moved to authorize the execution of Amendment No. 1 to the 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Oregon Department of Transportation for 
Traffic Signal Maintenance.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Smith and 
approved with the following vote:  Councilors Michalek, Mohr, Porter, Rummel, 
Smith, and Zielinski voted yes.  No Councilors voted no.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

B. Easley presented the 2024 Pavement Management Overlay Project Bid Award 
Recommendation – Project No. 24PW01.  Discussion ensued. 
Councilor Michalek’s comments and questions included clarification of why there 
was a twenty percent increase from the engineer’s estimate. 
Councilor Rummel’s comments and questions included clarification of the fog 
seal. 
Easley clarified there were significant complexities to traffic control at certain 
intersections that was not accounted for, more expensive fog seal that was 
added later, rising labor and material costs, the bid was scrutinized and 
determined to be fair, and fog seal is a treatment on the pavement for a smoother 
ride. 
Councilor Porter moved to award the NE Stephens Street Rehabilitation Project 
to the lowest responsible bidder, Knife River Materials, for $1,175,355, 
contingent upon expiration of the seven-day notice of intent to award period.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilor Rummel and approved with the following 
vote:  Councilors Michalek, Mohr, Porter, Rummel, Smith, and Zielinski voted 
yes.  No Councilors voted no.  The motion passed unanimously. 

C. Easley presented the 2024 Pavement Management Slurry Seals Project Bid 
Award Recommendation – Project No. 24PW02.  Discussion ensued. 
Councilor Michalek’s comments and questions included clarification of where the 
bidder was located and whether street projects were completed in sections. 
Council President Mohr’s comments and questions included clarification of NE 
Garden Valley up to Lincoln, which was done approximately two to three years 
ago. 
Easley clarified they have worked with this bidder in the past, they are pretty 
reputable, she believed they are based out of Sacramento, it is more cost 
effective to repair streets in planned sections, and streets are repaired every 
seven to ten years. 
Councilor Porter moved to award the 2024 Pavement Management Program 
Slurry Seals Project to VSS International, Inc., the lowest responsible bidder, for 
$256,000, contingent upon expiration of the seven-day notice of intent to award 
period.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Zielinski and approved with the 



CONSENT AGENDA A 
07/22/2024 

June 24, 2024 City Council Minutes  4 
 

following vote:  Councilors Michalek, Mohr, Porter, Rummel, Smith, and Zielinski 
voted yes.  No Councilors voted no.  The motion passed unanimously. 

D. Harker presented Providing Interim Cash Flow for Off Street Parking Fund.  
Discussion ensued. 
Councilor Porter’s comments and questions included whether there are any 
updates on funding opportunities and when the Council will get them. 
Council President Mohr’s comments and questions included who is leading the 
Staff review effort, there has been a lot of discussion and work put into this issue, 
and we need to meet to figure out where we are at. 
Councilor Smith’s comments and questions included setting up a work session 
for constituents to present materials and observations, meeting with Messenger, 
parking meters were considered, the discussion group discovered that many 
proposals fell short of solving the deficit, taking money from the general fund 
would have a negative impact on City operations, parking meters will not pay for 
the deficit, the City already had a significant parking study done, and there is still 
a significant short fall. 
Councilor Michalek’s comments and questions included installing parking meters 
out of the general fund, asking downtown businesses to pay extra, and looking at 
other cities for successful parking solutions. 
Harker clarified that Staff in multiple departments are evaluating options. 
Messenger clarified that Staff is waiting on additional materials from the 
Downtown Parking Discussion Group, the need to schedule another work 
session, and meeting with Councilor Smith. 
Councilor Zielinski moved to authorize use of $50,000 of ARPA funds to provide 
cash flow assistance for the Off-Street Parking Fund.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilor Rummel and approved with the following vote:  Councilors 
Michalek, Mohr, Porter, Rummel, Smith, and Zielinski voted yes.  No Councilors 
voted no.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

10. Items from Mayor, City Council, and City Manager 
A. Messenger discussed a tour at UCC on July 8th.  

There was a consensus by the Council to take a tour of the UCC Medical 
Building on July 8, 2024, beginning at 5:00 p.m. 
Councilor Porter discussed the increase in homeless camps and fire activity in 
her area, appreciation for law enforcement efforts, whether the Homeless 
Commission is still involved in finding a location for an urban campground, 
concern for running out of time to use ARPA funds, the possibility of 
reconsidering a previous property, whether the City will review the ruling or rely 
on the State’s interpretation, encouraging people to step up on this issue, and not 
accepting the status quo. 
Council President Mohr’s comments and questions included when the Homeless 
Commission is scheduled to meet next. 



CONSENT AGENDA A 
07/22/2024 

June 24, 2024 City Council Minutes  5 
 

Councilor Michalek’s comments and questions included appreciation for law 
enforcement’s response efforts and the possibility of relocating the homeless 
population outside of the city. 
Councilor Smith’s comments and questions included whether there are any 
updates on the Dream Center property or Bernie Woodward’s proposal for an 
urban campground. 
Klopfenstein stated there is a cleanup scheduled for that area tomorrow, which 
may help temporarily. 
Nytes stated the next Homeless Commission meeting is scheduled on Monday, 
July 22, 2024. 
Messenger clarified the understanding from previous Council direction was to 
find another location for an urban campground that the Dream Center will 
manage.  Negotiations have continued, but finding another location has 
continued to be challenging.  Hopefully, the Supreme Court will issue a decision 
that makes finding a location less problematic.  The search for a new location will 
continue and information about new locations is welcomed.  There have not been 
any updates on Bernie Woodward’s proposal.   
Forrester clarified the Supreme Court’s decision has not been released yet, the 
current law requires a location inside city limits, Oregon has codified parts of the 
law, it will take time to review the new ruling, future impact to the City is unknown 
at this point, and the City will review recommendations.  We need to be careful 
about discussing or making a decision about an issue that has not been publicly 
noticed and placed on an upcoming meeting agenda. 
 

11. Adjourn 
Council President Mohr adjourned the regular meeting at 8:32 p.m. 
 

Grace Jelks 

Grace Jelks 
Management Staff Assistant 



CONSENT AGENDA B 
07/22/2024 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
OLCC NEW OUTLET  

THE MAJESTIC THEATER, LLC 
431 SE MAIN STREET 

Meeting Date: July 22, 2024                       Agenda Section: Consent 
Department: Administration       Staff Contact: Grace Jelks, Management Assistant  
www.cityofroseburg.org       Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6866 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
OLCC has received an application from The Majestic Theater, LLC, as a new outlet 
granted for “New Outlet – Full On Premises” sales.  Roseburg Municipal Code Chapter 
9.12 requires staff review of all applications submitted to the Oregon Liquor and Cannabis 
Commission (OLCC) for a license to sell alcoholic beverages within the City. Upon 
completion of staff review, the City Recorder is required to submit the application and a 
recommendation concerning endorsement to the Council for its consideration. Changes 
to existing licenses must be processed in the same manner. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   

Chapter 9.12 requires Council to make a recommendation to OLCC on the 
approval or denial of all liquor license applications submitted by any establishment 
located inside City limits.   

 
B. Analysis.  

The Police Department conducted a background investigation on the applicant and 
found no reason to deny the application. 

 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   

The applicant has paid the appropriate fee for City review of the application. 
 
D. Timing Considerations.   

The applicant is requesting endorsement from the Council for immediate submittal 
to OLCC. 
 

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
Council may recommend OLCC approval of the application as submitted or recommend 
denial based on OLCC criteria. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


CONSENT AGENDA B 
07/22/2024 

Staff recommends Council approval of the application as submitted. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE OLCC NEW OUTLET APPLICATION 
FOR THE MAJESTIC THEATER, LLC, AT 431 SE MAIN STREET, IN ROSEBURG, 
OREGON.” 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Subject Application 
 
 
Cc: License Applicant with copy of agenda 
 Jonathan Crowl, OLCC Representative  



CONSENT AGENDA B
  ATTACHMENT NO. 1









CONSENT AGENDA C 
07/22/2024 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
OLCC NEW OUTLET  

MUCHAS GRACIAS MEXICAN FOOD - ROSEBURG 
1144 W. HARVARD AVE 

Meeting Date: July 22, 2024                       Agenda Section: Consent 
Department: Administration       Staff Contact: Grace Jelks, Management Assistant  
www.cityofroseburg.org       Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6866 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
OLCC has received an application from Muchas Gracias Mexican Food - Roseburg, as a 
new outlet granted for “New Outlet – Commercial Off - Premises” sales.  Roseburg 
Municipal Code Chapter 9.12 requires staff review of all applications submitted to the 
Oregon Liquor and Cannabis Commission (OLCC) for a license to sell alcoholic 
beverages within the City. Upon completion of staff review, the City Recorder is required 
to submit the application and a recommendation concerning endorsement to the Council 
for its consideration. Changes to existing licenses must be processed in the same 
manner. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   

Chapter 9.12 requires Council to make a recommendation to OLCC on the 
approval or denial of all liquor license applications submitted by any establishment 
located inside City limits.   

 
B. Analysis.  

The Police Department conducted a background investigation on the applicant and 
found no reason to deny the application. 

 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   

The applicant has paid the appropriate fee for City review of the application. 
 
D. Timing Considerations.   

The applicant is requesting endorsement from the Council for immediate submittal 
to OLCC. 
 

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
Council may recommend OLCC approval of the application as submitted or recommend 
denial based on OLCC criteria. 
 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


CONSENT AGENDA C 
07/22/2024 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council approval of the application as submitted. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE OLCC NEW OUTLET APPLICATION 
FOR MUCHAS GRACIAS MEXICAN FOOD - ROSEBURG, AT 1144 W. HARVARD 
AVE., IN ROSEBURG, OREGON.” 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Subject Application 
 
 
Cc: License Applicant with copy of agenda 
 Jonathan Crowl, OLCC Representative  



CONSENT AGENDA C
  ATTACHMENT NO. 1









CONSENT AGENDA D 
07/22/2024 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
OLCC CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP  

ROSEBUD ENTERTAINMENT, LLC DBA THE ROSEBUD THEATRE 
663 SE JACKSON STREET 

  

Meeting Date: July 22, 2024                       Agenda Section: Consent 
Department: Administration       Staff Contact: Grace Jelks, Management Assistant  
www.cityofroseburg.org       Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6866 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
OLCC has received an application from Rosebud Entertainment, LLC dba The Rosebud 
Theatre, as a change of ownership granted for “Change of Ownership – Full On Premises 
- Commercial” sales.  Roseburg Municipal Code Chapter 9.12 requires staff review of all 
applications submitted to the Oregon Liquor and Cannabis Commission (OLCC) for a 
license to sell alcoholic beverages within the City. Upon completion of staff review, the 
City Recorder is required to submit the application and a recommendation concerning 
endorsement to the Council for its consideration. Changes to existing licenses must be 
processed in the same manner. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   

Chapter 9.12 requires Council to make a recommendation to OLCC on the 
approval or denial of all liquor license applications submitted by any establishment 
located inside City limits.   

 
B. Analysis.  

The Police Department conducted a background investigation on the applicant and 
found no reason to deny the application. 

 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   

The applicant has paid the appropriate fee for City review of the application. 
 
D. Timing Considerations.   

The applicant is requesting endorsement from the Council for immediate submittal 
to OLCC. 
 

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
Council may recommend OLCC approval of the application as submitted or recommend 
denial based on OLCC criteria. 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


CONSENT AGENDA D 
07/22/2024 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council approval of the application as submitted. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE OLCC CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP 
APPLICATION FOR ROSEBUD ENTERTAINMENT, LLC DBA THE ROSEBUD 
THEATRE, AT 663 SE JACKSON STREET, IN ROSEBURG, OREGON.” 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Subject Application 
 
 
Cc: License Applicant with copy of agenda 
 Jonathan Crowl, OLCC Representative  



CONSENT AGENDA D
  ATTACHMENT NO. 1









CONSENT AGENDA E 
07/22/2024 

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

RESOLUTION 2024-15 CORRECTING AIRPORT FACILITIES FEES 

Meeting Date:  July 22, 2024 Agenda Section: Consent 
Department: Administration      Staff Contact:  Amy Nytes, City Recorder 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6866 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
Council is being asked to adopt a resolution to correct a calculation error in the fee 
schedule Airport Facilities section to show a maximum increase of 3%.  

BACKGROUND 

A. Council Action History.
April 10, 2006, the Council adopted Resolution No. 2006-9, amending the policy for long-
term leasing of corporate hanger space. This policy allows for annual rate adjustments
based on the CPI-U West Index, with a maximum increase of 3%

B. Analysis.
The calculation error in the fee schedule was identified during a routine review of the
annual rate adjustments for corporate hangar space leases. The error stemmed from an
incorrect application of the CPI-U West Index, resulting in a proposed increase that
exceeded the 3% maximum set by Resolution No. 2024-10.

The proposed resolution corrects the calculation by recalculating the annual rate 
adjustments according to the CPI-U West Index, ensuring the increase does not exceed 
the 3% cap. This correction will be applied retroactively to July 1, 2024, aligning with the 
start of the fiscal year and ensuring no undue financial burden is placed on lessees for 
the current period. 

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
This change will have no negative financial impact to the City, as this correction will be
applied retroactively to July 1, 2024.

D. Timing Considerations.
To maintain an accurate and current fee schedule, adopting the proposed resolution at
this time would be prudent.

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


CONSENT AGENDA E 
07/22/2024 

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
• Adopt the resolution as presented; or 
• Request additional information. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council adopt the resolution presented. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-15.” 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Resolution No. 2024-15 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-15 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10 TO CORRECT SECTION 1 
OF THE MASTER FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE FOR AIRPORT FACILITIES 

ONLY 

WHEREAS, On May 13, 2024, the City Council of the City of Roseburg adopted Resolution 
No. 2024-10, which established the Master Fees and Charges schedule for the city; and 

WHEREAS, the fee schedule was inadvertently updated using the CPI-U West index and 
exceed the adopted 3% annual rate adjustment cap set for certain Airport fees;  and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary to correct the “Airport Facilities” section of the Master Fees and 
Charges Schedule by adopting an updated resolution;  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ROSEBURG AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Exhibit “A” Section related to Airport Facilities of the Master Fees and 
Charges, as adopted by Resolution No. 2024-10, is hereby amended.  The corrected 
airport facilities fees are attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this 
reference.   

Section 2. The new Exhibit “A”, attached to this resolution, replaces the corresponding 
section of the previously adopted Master Fees and Charges Schedule.  

Section 3. This resolution shall become effective retroactively as of July 1, 2024. 

ADOPTED BY THE ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL AT ITS REGULAR MEETING 
ON THE 22nd DAY OF July, 2024. 

____________________________ 
Amy Nytes, City Recorder 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-15 Page 1 of 2

CONSENT AGENDA E
  ATTACHMENT NO. 1



AIRPORT FACILITIES 

City of Roseburg ‐ Master Fee Schedule 

COST UNIT 
Commercial Operator's Permit 

Seasonal .................................................................................................................. $ 
Non‐Seasonal .......................................................................................................... $ 
Initial Application Review ........................................................................................ $ 

200.00 
125.00 
100.00 

3 months 
per quarter 

Fuel 
Fuel Flowage (payable by fuel purchaser) ……………………………………………………… $ 0.05 per gallon 
Profit Margin on Retail Sales of Aviation Fuels ………………………………………………. $ 0.50 per gallon over 

wholesale 

Overnight Tie‐Down Rates 
(Government Operations exempted) 

Single engine …………………………………………………………………………………………………… $ 3.00 per day 
Twin engine …………………………………………………………………………………………………….. $ 5.00 per day 

Rent/Lease Rates (Annual) 
Non‐Aviation Related Use of Corporate Hangar Space ……………………….………… $ 0.77 per square foot 

Annual adjustments to the following Airport fees will be tied to the CPI‐U West index, December to December and 
rounded to the nearest dollar (3% maximum) and become effective July of each year. This applies to: Non‐Aviation 
Related Use of Corporate Hangar Space, Aviation Suites , Commercial “Lear”; Storage Units B, F, G, H, I; Hangar row 
“C”, south end Single T‐Hangars; all Twin hangars; north end Single T‐Hangars; Tie‐Downs Single and Twin. This 
adjustment will not apply to Storage Unit J until such time as the fees charged for storage units rise to the same level. 
Corporate Hangar Space and Aviation Suites shall be adjusted by the CPI‐U West index, but is not rounded to the 
nearest dollar or cent. 

Rent/Lease Rates (Monthly) 
Additional North‐End Corporate Hangar Parking Space …………………………………. $ 26.00 per month 
Per space exceeding the two spaces designated to each north‐end hangar with street access 
Commercial "Lear" ……………………………………………………………….……………………….… $ 870.00 per month 
Corporate Hangar Space & Aviation Suites …………………………………..………………… $0.3403 annual per sq foot 
Storage Units B, G, H, I ……………………………………………………………………….…………… $ 88.00 
Storage Unit J ………………………………………………………………………………………………….. $ 100.00 per month 
Storage Unit F ……………………………………………………………………….………………………… $ 65.00 per month 
T‐Hangar Single (except I‐5, I‐9, I‐14) ……………………………………...……………………… $ 269.00 per month 
T‐Hangar Single (North End 1‐5, 1‐9, 1‐14) …………………………………………..………… $ 197.00 per month 
T‐Hangar Twin ………………………………………………………………………………………………… $ 494.00 per month 
T‐Hangar Single Daily Rate ……………………………………………………………………...……… $ 25.00 per day 
T‐Hangar Twin Daily Rate ……………………………………………………………………………..… $ 36.00 per day 
T‐Hangar Row "C" …………………………………………………………………………………………… $ 229.00 per month 
Tie‐Downs Single …………………………………………………………………………..………………… $ 43.00 monthly per space 
Tie‐Downs Twin …………………………………………………………………………………………….… $ 73.00 monthly per space 

Security Deposit (Refundable) for T‐Hangar and Storage Unit Rentals …………… $ 100.00 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-15 Page 2 of 2



CONSENT AGENDA F 
07/22/2024 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
FAA GRANT ACCEPTANCE – EXTEND TAXIWAY A – PHASE II CONSTRUCTION  

RESOLUTION NO 2024-16 
 

Meeting Date:  July 22, 2024 Agenda Section: Consent 
Department: Administration      Staff Contact:  Nikki Messenger 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6866 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
Staff is expecting a Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) grant offer to cover ninety 
percent of the costs for the construction of the taxiway extension project.  The issue for 
the Council is whether to adopt the attached resolution authorizing grant acceptance.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   
On July 25, 2022, the Council adopted Resolution No. 2022-24 authorizing acceptance 
of an FAA grant for the design and environmental phases of the taxiway extension project.  
 
B. Analysis.  
In its current configuration, the north end of the taxiway is approximately 400 feet shorter 
than the runway.  In order to use the entire length of the runway, an aircraft may be forced 
to back-taxi, which is a safety issue.  The City received a grant in 2022 for the 
environmental and design phase of the project.  
 
The project has been bid and a task order has been negotiated for the construction 
management services.  Staff has not received a grant offer, but expects one in the near 
future that may require turnaround prior to the next City Council meeting.   
 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   
The project will be funded utilizing a combination of Non-Primary Entitlements and State 
Apportionment funding through the FAA’s Airport Improvement Program.  The grant will 
cover ninety percent costs as estimated below: 
 
   Project Costs 
   Construction    $2,064,955 
   CM Task Order   $   247,852   
   IFE fee    $       4,000 
   Admin.      $       3,000 
    Total     $2,319,807 
 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


CONSENT AGENDA F 
07/22/2024 

   Proposed Funding 
FAA Grant    $2,087,826 

   City Match    $   231,981 
 
   
D. Timing Considerations.   
The FAA typically requests the City execute the grant agreement in early August.   
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The Council has the following options: 

1. Adopt the attached resolution authorizing grant acceptance; or 
2. Request additional information and schedule a special meeting to authorize grant 

acceptance; or 
3. Not adopt the attached resolution, which could delay the project at least one year.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Council adopt the attached resolution authorizing acceptance of 
an FAA grant for the Extend Taxiway A – Phase II Construction project.  The Airport 
Commission discussed this project at their June 20 meeting.  Staff can provide the 
Commission’s recommendation at the Council meeting.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-16, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT OFFER FROM THE FEDERAL AVIATION 
ADMINISTRATION IN THE MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF $2.1 MILLION TO BE USED 
TOWARDS THE EXTEND TAXIWAY A PHASE II – CONSTRUCTION PROJECT, AIP 
#3-41-0054-031-2024, IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE ROSEBURG REGIONAL 
AIRPORT.”   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Resolution No. 2024-16  



CONSENT AGENDA F 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-16      Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-16 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT OFFER 
FROM THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION IN THE MAXIMUM 
AMOUNT OF $2.1 MILLION TO BE USED TOWARDS THE EXTEND 
TAXIWAY A PHASE II – CONSTRUCTION, AIP #3-41-0054-031-2024, 
IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE ROSEBURG REGIONAL AIRPORT 
 
 

 IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSEBURG as follows: 
 
 Section 1: That the City of Roseburg shall accept a Grant Offer from the 
Federal Aviation Administration in the maximum amount of $2.1 million for the Extend 
Taxiway A Phase II – Construction Project for the Roseburg Regional Airport; and 
 
 Section 2:  That the City Manager of the City of Roseburg is hereby authorized 
and directed to execute the grant agreement on behalf of the City of Roseburg; and 
 
 Section 3:  Once received, a true copy of the Grant Offer referred to herein shall 
be attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
 

APPROVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSEBURG, OREGON, AT 
ITS REGULAR MEETING ON THE 22nd DAY OF JULY, 2024. 

 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Amy Nytes, City Recorder  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
07/22/2024 

Page | 1  
 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ROSEBURG URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY 
(UGB), DE-ANNEXING PROPERTY, AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

MAP, ANNEXING RIGHT-OF-WAY & AMENDING THE URBAN GROWTH 
MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT (UGMA) – FILE NO. CPA-23-002 

 

Meeting Date:  July 22, 2024 Agenda Section: Public Hearing 
Department: Community Development      Staff Contact:  Stuart Cowie 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6750 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
The City of Roseburg has initiated an amendment to the City’s UGB. The amendment, if 
approved, includes subsequent land use actions including de-annexations, annexation of 
right-of-way, revised comprehensive plan designations, zone changes and an 
amendment of the City/County Urban Growth Management Agreement (UGMA). This will 
require approval by both the City and Douglas County. The City’s decision must be made 
prior to Douglas County issuing a decision. 
  
The method the City is using to readjust the UGB is referred to in statute as a “UGB 
Exchange” but has been more commonly referred to locally during this process as the 
“UGB Swap.” The two terms are interchangeable in meaning and the City has used the 
term UGB Swap more frequently. The City is proposing to swap residential land already 
within the UGB encumbered by significant development constraints with land immediately 
outside the UGB that already has an established residential pattern of development that 
is much easier to develop. Ultimately, the UGB line will move in such a manner as to 
create no net increase in the number of possible future dwelling units currently allowed in 
the UGB as compared to the new boundaries proposed by the swap.  
 
The requested amendments constitute a Legislative Amendment, as indicated by Section 
12.10.020 of the Roseburg Municipal Code (RMC). RMC Section 12.10.020(G) requires 
that upon receiving a recommendation from the Planning Commission, City Council shall 
hold a public hearing to consider the proposal. The public hearing shall follow the 
procedures outlined within RMC Section 12.10.020(E). 
 
As required by RMC Section 12.10.020(D) the Roseburg Planning Commission held a 
public hearing on May 6, 2024. As Douglas County must also make a decision regarding 
this proposal, a joint public hearing with both the City and Douglas County Planning 
Commissions was held. Both Planning Commissions made positive recommendations 
that the legislative actions be approved. During the joint public hearing on May 6th the 
City Planning Commission directed staff to prepare written findings indicating their 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
07/22/2024 

Page | 2  
 

recommendation to Council to approve the proposal. They adopted these findings during 
their meeting on May 20, 2024. The Findings of Fact and Order document is included as 
Attachment 1 to this memo.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   
On September 24, 2018, City Council held a work study session initiating the UGB Swap 
process. 
 
On January 13, 2020, City Council adopted Resolution 2020-01, creating goals and action 
items for the City of Roseburg for 2020-2022. Pursuing the UGB Swap is an action item 
listed under the goal to develop and implement policies to enhance housing opportunities. 
 
On March 11, 2024, City Council received a status update concerning progress being 
made on the UGB Swap and that an application had been submitted to the Oregon 
Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) and the Douglas County 
Planning Department for their official review.  
 
B. Analysis. 
The areas to be removed from the UGB are two privately owned properties, 91.5± acres 
on the hillside east of NW Daysha Dr. (owned by John and Donna Atkinson) and 198.5± 
acres on the hillside north of NE Barager Ave. (owned by Barry Serafin). The majority of 
these two properties have a comprehensive plan designation of Low-density Residential 
(LDR). The area proposed to be added to the UGB is 220± acres and located on the west 
side of the City, generally bounded by the South Umpqua River and Troost St., a portion 
of an area commonly known as Charter Oaks. This land exchange results in a decrease 
in acreage within the UGB, but will enable the same number of possible future dwelling 
units.  
 
The objective of this UGB swap is to increase residential development capacity in order 
to meet Roseburg’s housing goals for the next 20 years. In 2019, the Roseburg City 
Council set a goal to develop policies to enhance housing opportunities, which required 
the City to conduct an updated Housing Needs Analysis (HNA). 
 
The Housing Needs Analysis (2019, ECONorthwest), made several key findings within 
its conclusion that helped to justify the need for a UGB swap: 
  
1.  The population of the City’s UGB is forecasted to grow from 30,256 people in 2019 

to 35,771 people in 2039, an increase of 5,515 people. This equates to an average 
annual growth rate of 0.84 percent.  

2.  The growth of 5,515 people will result in demand for 2,768 new dwelling units over 
the 20-year planning period, averaging 134 new dwelling units annually.  

3.  Sixty percent of the future housing type needed to meet the demand of 2,768 new 
dwelling units will need to be traditional single-family detached units.  



PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
07/22/2024 

Page | 3  
 

4.  Roseburg’s low-density residential land base in which single-family detached units 
are most typically constructed has constraints to development.  

5.  An Urban Growth Boundary Swap can be a key tool in addressing the need for 
providing more flat and easily developable low-density residential land. 

 
A UGB swap requires the removal of identified constrained lands and the addition of an 
equivalent sized area of land that can accommodate more efficient and logical urban 
development. In order to determine the most suitable land to include, a “Preliminary Study 
Area” and a subsequent “Study Area” was established in accordance with OAR 660-024-
0065 to examine potential locations for the exchange of the UGB. 
 
The proposed exchange area is part of a greater area known as Charter Oaks, which has 
been identified as a future area for urban expansion in plans at the City and County level 
for more than 40 years. The details of the history of this area are provided within the city’s 
application material; however, they are not the primary determinant for this area’s 
selection in the proposal. The Study Area Analysis within the City’s staff report and 
findings uses the procedures and methodology defined in OAR 660-024-0065 and OAR 
660-024-0067 to determine the appropriate areas eligible for the exchange. Through the 
evaluation of lands in the Study Area that are eligible for inclusion in the UGB through the 
exchange process, the City determined that the Charter Oaks area is the most suitable 
location. Please see Section 2, “Analysis of the Proposal” within the submitted staff report 
and findings for information concerning the details of the analysis and conclusion. 
 
In addition to addressing the criteria within the required administrative rule, the City also 
evaluated the proposed amendments in order to address consistency with applicable 
Statewide Planning Goals and with the Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan 
policies. See Section 3, “Consistency with Statewide Planning Goals” and Section 4, 
“Consistency with the Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan Policies” within the 
submitted staff report and findings. 
  
The City Council has the authority to grant or deny legislative action proposals. The 
Roseburg Planning Commission has made a recommendation to Council to approve the 
proposed request and has adopted written findings supporting their recommendation.   
Douglas County must also approve the UGB swap and specific action items in which the 
county has jurisdictional control. 
 
The following list breaks down these various land use action items as outlined in the 
submitted staff report and findings document within the city’s application. 
The list is as follows: 
 
City of Roseburg 
1.  Amend the UGB by removing the Serafin and Atkinson properties from the 

boundary and adding Charter Oaks property to the UGB; 
2.  De-annexation of the Serafin and Atkinson properties that lie in city limits; 
3.  Annexation of Troost St. right-of-way to the edge of the new UGB; 



PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
07/22/2024 

Page | 4  
 

4.  City Comprehensive Plan Amendment for the Charter Oaks property to include 
applying the city’s Low Density Residential (LDR) designation to the majority of the 
Charter Oaks property and applying the Public/Semi-Public (PSP) plan 
designation to the 17.5-acre property owned by the Roseburg Public School 
District; and, 

5.  Amend the Urban Growth Management Agreement (UGMA) to reflect the UGB 
swap and to include Charter Oaks in Subarea 2 of the agreement. 

  
Douglas County 
1.  Amend the UGB as stated above; 
2.  Amend the UGMA to reflect the stated changes and to include the Charter Oaks 

property in subarea 2 of the agreement; 
3.  Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning for the Atkinson property to 

a Rural Residential-5 (RR5) plan designation and (5R) Rural Residential 5 zoning 
and the Serafin property to a combination of Rural Residential-5 (RR5) plan 
designation and (5R) Rural Residential 5 zoning, along with a portion designated 
as Farm Forest Transitional (FFT) with a (FF) Farm Forest zoning; and 

4.  Zoning amendments for the Charter Oaks property (applying the County’s (RS) 
Suburban Residential and (PR) Public/Semi-Public zoning). 

 
The legislative request for the UGB swap and subsequent land use actions was reviewed 
by the City based on the applicable criteria as follows: 
  

 RMC Section 12.10.020 – “Legislative Action Procedures” 
 ORS 222 – “Boundary Changes, Annexations, Withdrawals” 
 OAR 660-024 – “Urban Growth Boundaries” 
 Oregon Statewide Planning Goals 
 Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan Policies 

 
Ultimately, City Council’s decision whether to approve or deny the proposed request must 
be centered upon whether or not these criteria have been satisfied. 
 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations. 
The City has spent a tremendous amount of staff time over the last six years in order to 
address the criteria necessary to submit a complete application involving each of the land 
use action items necessary as part of the UGB Swap proposal. In addition, third-party 
land use consultants, traffic engineer, storm water feasibility analysis, and survey work 
has been paid for and completed in order to address necessary criteria. Although 
immediate action involving a decision concerning the UGB swap does not trigger financial 
impacts to the City, the effects of approving the UGB swap will have significant economic 
impact to our community for years to come. 
 
D. Timing Considerations. 
The UGB Swap proposal is a legislative action initiated by the City of Roseburg. 
Legislative action proposals are not subject to the time frames necessary to issue a 



PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
07/22/2024 

Page | 5  
 

decision as in most land use applications. As a result, Council is under no legal time frame 
in which a decision must be rendered. 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
 Request staff prepare findings of fact on behalf of City Council to approve the UGB 

swap and subsequent land use actions; or 
 Continue consideration of the request; or 
 Request staff prepare findings of fact on behalf of City Council to deny the UGB swap 

and subsequent land use actions. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that Council follow the recommendation provided by the City Planning 
Commission to approve the UGB swap and subsequent land use actions as outlined 
within Commission’s Findings of Fact and Order document dated May 20, 2024. Staff 
recommends that City Council request staff to prepare Council’s own written findings, as 
required in RMC 12.10.020(G)(1), approving the land use actions as listed below within 
the suggested motion. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
I MOVE TO REQUEST STAFF PREPARE FINDINGS OF FACT ON BEHALF OF CITY 
COUNCIL AND APPROVE THE FOLLOWING LAND USE ACTIONS, AS REFERENCED 
IN FILE NO. CPA-23-002: 
 

1.  AMEND THE UGB BY REMOVING THE SERAFIN AND ATKINSON 
PROPERTIES FROM THE BOUNDARY AND ADDING CHARTER OAKS 
PROPERTY TO THE UGB. 

2.  DE-ANNEXATION OF THE SERAFIN AND ATKINSON PROPERTIES THAT LIE 
IN CITY LIMITS. 

3.  ANNEXATION OF TROOST ST. RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE EDGE OF THE NEW 
UGB. 

4.  CITY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT FOR THE CHARTER OAKS 
PROPERTY TO INCLUDE APPLYING THE CITY’S LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL (LDR) DESIGNATION TO THE MAJORITY OF THE CHARTER 
OAKS PROPERTY AND APPLYING THE PUBLIC/SEMI-PUBLIC (PSP) PLAN 
DESIGNATION TO THE 17.5-ACRE PROPERTY OWNED BY THE ROSEBURG 
PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT. 

5.  AMEND THE URBAN GROWTH MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT (UGMA) TO 
REFLECT THE UGB SWAP AND TO INCLUDE CHARTER OAKS IN SUBAREA 
2 OF THE AGREEMENT.  

 
 
EXHIBITS: 
Exhibit A -  May 20, 2024 Roseburg Planning Commission Findings of Fact and Order 

File No. CPA-23-002 
Exhibit B - April 15, 2024 Urban Growth Boundary Exchange Proposal: Staff Report 

and Findings (AKA Application) 

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/storage/app/media/CDD/UGB%20Exchange/CPA-23-002%20FINDINGS%20OF%20FACT%20AND%20ORDER%20UGB%20SWAP.pdf
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/storage/app/media/CDD/UGB%20Exchange/CPA-23-002%20FINDINGS%20OF%20FACT%20AND%20ORDER%20UGB%20SWAP.pdf
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/storage/app/media/CDD/UGB%20Exchange/Roseburg%20UGB%20Exchange-Final-04-15-24.pdf
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/storage/app/media/CDD/UGB%20Exchange/Roseburg%20UGB%20Exchange-Final-04-15-24.pdf


PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
07/22/2024 

Page | 6  
 

Exhibit C - Appendices 
Exhibit D -  Letters of Support 
Exhibit E -  Letter of Concern  
 

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/storage/app/media/CDD/UGB%20Exchange/Appendices%20ALL-04-15-24.pdf


PUBLIC HEARINGS A  
EXHIBIT A

















CHARTER OAKS UGB SWAP 

CITY COUNCIL COMMISSION PACKET 

JULY 22, 2024 

Exhibit B – April 15, 2024 UGB Exchange Proposal: 

Staff Report & Findings (aka Application) 

Link to document: 

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/storage/app/media/CDD/UGB%20Exc

hange/Roseburg%20UGB%20Exchange-Final-04-15-24.pdf  

PUBLIC HEARINGS A  
EXHIBIT B

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/storage/app/media/CDD/UGB%20Exchange/Roseburg%20UGB%20Exchange-Final-04-15-24.pdf
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/storage/app/media/CDD/UGB%20Exchange/Roseburg%20UGB%20Exchange-Final-04-15-24.pdf


CHARTER OAKS UGB SWAP 

CITY COUNCIL COMMISSION PACKET 

JULY 22, 2024 

Exhibit C – Appendices 

Link to document: 

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/storage/app/media/CDD/UGB%20Exc

hange/Appendices%20ALL-04-15-24.pdf  

PUBLIC HEARINGS A
                  EXHIBIT C

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/storage/app/media/CDD/UGB%20Exchange/Appendices%20ALL-04-15-24.pdf
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/storage/app/media/CDD/UGB%20Exchange/Appendices%20ALL-04-15-24.pdf


PUBLIC HEARINGS A
                  EXHIBIT D

















































































PUBLIC HEARINGS A
                  EXHIBIT E







































DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
07/22/2024 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
SE STEPHENS STREET WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT BID AWARD 

RECOMMENDATION   
PROJECT NO. 23WA12  

 

Meeting Date:  July 22, 2024 Agenda Section: Department Items 
Department: Public Works      Staff Contact: Brice Perkins, PW Director 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6730 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
The City received bids for the SE Stephens Street Water Main Replacement Project. The 
issue for Council is whether to award the construction contract. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   
On February 13, 2023, Council awarded a Five-Year Design and Engineering Services 
contract for the Water Distribution Main Replacement Program to Century West 
Engineering with the understanding that each task order would be negotiated based on 
the work to be accomplished. Projects identified for replacement are identified in the City’s 
2012 Water System Master Plan.  
 
B. Analysis.  
This distribution main replacement project replaces approximately 2,700 lineal feet of 6-
inch diameter cast iron water main installed circa 1930s with new 12-inch ductile iron 
water main between SE Sykes Avenue and SE Oak Avenue. The existing main has 
reached the end of its useful service life and is in need of replacement. This work also 
precedes an upcoming grind inlay pavement project scheduled for 2026. Work includes 
approximately 450 lineal feet of water main connections at side streets, 46 water service 
connections, and 5 new fire hydrants.  
 
Additionally, this project includes approximately 877 lineal feet of sanitary sewer main on 
SE Stephens Street, SE Mosher Avenue, and SE Cass Avenue for Roseburg Urban 
Sanitary Authority (RUSA).  This portion of the work is being reimbursed by RUSA through 
a separate IGA agreement. RUSA contracted separately with the design engineer for the 
sewer improvements. RUSA will also be providing their own construction inspection. 
 
Construction bids were advertised for bid on June 11, 2024, and bids were opened on 
July 2, 2024.  
 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
07/22/2024 

Three bids were received and are summarized below. 
# Bidder Total Bid Amount 
1 Cradar Enterprises, Inc.  $ 1,708,905.00 
2 Jessie Rodriguez Construction LLC $ 2,005,022.00 
3 Laskey-Clifton Corp. $ 2,815,721.05 
   

 Engineer’s Estimate: $ 1,847,193.00 
 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations. 
The FY 2024-25 Water Fund budget includes $2,000,000 for this project. The total 
remaining project costs are estimated below: 
 
 Construction      $   1,708,905.00 
 Construction Mgt. Support (Estimate)  $        35,000.00 
 Construction Inspection Services (Estimate) $      125,000.00 
 Contingency (7.5 %)    $      128,167.88 
   Total     $    1,997,072.88 
 
RUSA’s portion of the construction project costs totals $270,397.17. 
 
D. Timing Considerations.   
If awarded, the Notice to Proceed (NTP) will be issued in August 2024.  The contract 
allows 180 calendar days to complete all work and includes a pause in work during winter 
months from November 1st to March 3rd. The project has a final completion date of 
August 29, 2025.   
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The Council has the following options: 

1. Award the contract to the lowest responsive bidder, Cradar Enterprises, Inc., for 
$1,708,905.00; or  

2. Request additional information; or 
3. Reject all bids.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The lowest bidder submitted all required documentation and is considered responsive 
and responsible.  Funds are budgeted for the project. Century West has reviewed the 
bids and recommended award to the lowest responsive bidder. The Public Works 
Commission discussed this bid award at their July 11, 2024, meeting. The Commission 
unanimously recommended an award to the lowest responsive bidder, Cradar 
Enterprises, Inc., for $1,708,905. Staff concurs with this recommendation.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO AWARD THE SE STEPHENS STREET WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT TO THE LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BIDDER, CRADAR ENTERPRISES, 
INC., FOR $ 1,708,905.00.” 
 



DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
07/22/2024 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment # 1 - Engineer’s letter of recommendation. 



5500 Meadows Road, Suite 250 503.419.2130 office 
Lake Oswego, OR 97035 503.639.2710 fax 

July 3, 2024 

Daryn Anderson, PE  
City of Roseburg 
900 SE Douglas 
Roseburg, Oregon 97470 

Re: SE Stephens Water Main Replacement 
Project No. 23WA12  

Dear Daryn: 

On July 2, 2024, three (3) bids were received to construct the above referenced project. Cradar 
Enterprises, Inc. submitted the apparent low bid for $1,708,905.00 which is 7.5% lower than the 
Engineer’s estimate of $1,847,193.00. 

The bid form was properly signed and executed, and the bid submission included a 1st Tier 
Subcontractor List, a Drug Testing Program Certification Form, a Bid Bond, Pay Equity Compliance 
Training Certification Form, and a Public Works Bond Pre-Bid Notice & Certification Form.  

Based upon our review of the bid, Century West Engineering recommends that the City of Roseburg 
award the construction contract to:  

Cradar Enterprises, Inc. 

This recommendation is pending final approval of the Public Works Commission, City Council and 
successful submittal of all required documents identified in the Contract Forms.     

Sincerely, 

Rawley Voorhies, PE 
Project Manager 

DEPARTMENT ITEMS A
     ATTACHMENT NO. 1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS B 
07/22/2024 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
SE DOUGLAS AVENUE PAVEMENT REPAIRS PROJECT BID AWARD 

RECOMMENDATION – 24PW09 

Meeting Date:  July 22, 2024 Agenda Section: Department Items 
Department:  Public Works      Staff Contact:  Brice Perkins, PW Director 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6730 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
Construction bids were received for the SE Douglas Avenue Pavement Repairs project. 
The issue for the City Council is whether to award the construction contract.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   
On June 10, 2024, Council approved Resolution No. 2024-13 adopting the 2024-25 
Budget. 
 
B. Analysis.  
As part of the City’s annual pavement rehabilitation work, staff identified the rehabilitation 
of a portion of SE Douglas Avenue from SE Rose Street to SE Main Street. Rehabilitation 
work will include up to 625 square yards of road base repair and replacement of up to 6 
ADA curb ramps.    
 
The project was bid with a base bid Schedule A and two alternate schedules. 
 

• Base Bid Schedule A: Includes 440 square yards of road base repair in SE 
Douglas Avenue from SE Rose Street to the west side of SE Jackson Street and 
from the east side of SE Jackson Street to the west side of SE Main Street. Work 
in this schedule also includes the replacement of two ADA curb ramps at SE Rose 
Street. 

• Schedule B: Includes 93 square yards of road base repair in the intersection of 
SE Douglas Avenue and SE Jackson Street. Work in this schedule also includes 
the replacement of two ADA curb ramps at SE Jackson Street. 

• Schedule C: Includes 92 square yards of road base repair in the intersection of 
SE Douglas Avenue and SE Main Street. Work in this schedule also includes the 
replacement of two ADA curb ramps at SE Main Street. 

 
The construction bid documents were advertised on June 18, 2024, and bids were 
opened on July 9, 2024. 
 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


DEPARTMENT ITEMS B 
07/22/2024 

 
Three bids were received and are summarized below: 
 

 
 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   
The FY 24-25 Transportation budget includes $250,000 for this project, and the Street 
Light/Sidewalk Fund has $260,000 available for ADA ramp improvements. Total project 
costs are estimated below. 
 
  Construction:    $ 259,390.56 
  Contingency (10% of Const.): $   25,939.00 
  CM Services (est.):   $   20,000.00  
  Total Estimated Costs:  $ 305,329.56 
 
Proposed Funding Breakdown 
 
  Transportation Fund:  $ 229,652.51 
  Street Light/Sidewalk Fund: $   75,677.05 
  Total Estimated Costs:  $ 305,329.56 
 
D. Timing Considerations.   
This project is budgeted for FY 24-25. If awarded, the Notice to Proceed will be issued in 
early August. The contractor is allowed 60 calendar days to complete the project.  
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The City Council has the following options: 

1. Award the contract to the lowest responsive bidder, Guido Construction, Inc., 
for $259,390.56; or  

2. Request additional information; or 
3. Reject all bids. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The lowest bidder submitted all required documentation and is considered both 
responsive and responsible. Funds have been budgeted and are available for this project. 
The Public Works Commission discussed this project at their July 11, 2024, meeting and 
unanimously recommended awarding the project to the lowest responsive bidder, Guido 
Constrution, Inc., for $259,390.56. Staff concurs with this recommendation.   
 
 
 

No. Bidder Schedule A Schedule B Schedule C
 Total All 

Schedules 
1 Guido Inc. 136,837.84$    59,736.84$      62,815.88$      259,390.56$    
2 Knife River Materials 198,687.00$    104,566.00$    104,966.00$    408,219.00$    
3 Freedom Builders 228,368.00$    94,868.00$      96,580.00$      419,816.00$    

Engineer's Estimate 149,550.00$    68,190.00$      79,175.00$      296,915.00$    



DEPARTMENT ITEMS B 
07/22/2024 

SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO AWARD THE SE DOUGLAS AVENUE PAVEMENT REPAIRS PROJECT 
TO THE LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BIDDER, GUIDO CONSTRUCTION, INC., FOR 
$259,390.56.” 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
None. 



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
07/22/2024 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH ROSEBURG URBAN SANITARY 

AUTHORITY – SE STEPHENS WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT  
PROJECT NO. 23WA12  

 

Meeting Date:  July 22, 2024 Agenda Section: Department Items 
Department: Public Works      Staff Contact: Brice Perkins, PW Director 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6730 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
Roseburg Urban Sanitary Authority (RUSA) is interested in including sanitary sewer 
upgrades in a city project scheduled for construction this summer. The issue for the City 
Council is whether to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) to accomplish this additional work. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   
None. 
 
B. Analysis.  
Staff has been contacted by RUSA regarding the potential for including sanitary sewer 
work to the SE Stephens Water Main Replacement Project scheduled for 2024/25 
construction.  In order to include this work in the City’s project, it is necessary to enter into 
an IGA.   

The intent of the IGA is to include RUSA’s work in the City’s project.  RUSA contracted 
directly with the design consultant to provide the design, specifications and bid quantities. 
Once the project is awarded by Council, RUSA will have 45 days to provide payment for 
the estimated cost of the bid items.  At the end of the project, a final invoice and/or refund 
will be sent based on actual construction quantities.  
 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   
The overall construction costs based on the lowest bid received is $1,708,905. RUSA’s 
share of the overall project costs based on bid items related to their improvements is 
$270,397.17 
 

D. Timing Considerations.   

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
07/22/2024 

Construction bids were received on July 2, 2024, and if awarded the Notice to Proceed 
will be issued in August 2024. As such, it would be appropriate to enter into the IGA as 
soon as practical.  
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The Council has the following options: 

1. Authorize the City Manager to enter into an IGA with RUSA to include the sanitary 
sewer work in this project; or  

2. Request additional information; or 
3. Recommend not entering into the IGA with RUSA and not include the sanitary 

sewer work in the City’s projects.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
This concept was discussed by the Public Works Commission at their July 11th meeting.  
The Commission recommended that the City Council authorize the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with RUSA to include sanitary 
sewer improvements with the SE Stephens Water Main Replacement Project.  Staff 
concurs with their recommendation.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH RUSA TO INCLUDE SANITARY 
SEWER IMPROVEMENTS WITH THE SE STEPHENS WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT.”  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
None 



DEPARTMENT ITEMS D 
07/22/2024 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
DOUGLAS AVENUE DEER CREEK BRIDGE PROJECT - INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

AGREEMENT- REVISED CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
 

Meeting Date:  July 22, 2024 Agenda Section: Department Items 
Department: Public Works      Staff Contact: Brice Perkins, PW Director 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6730 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
Staff recently received the revised Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) Change Order 
No. 1 for the Douglas Avenue Deer Creek Bridge Construction Project from the Oregon 
Department of Transportation (ODOT). The issue for the City Council is whether to 
authorize the execution of the change order to the agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   
On December 14, 2020, the City Council authorized the execution of an IGA with ODOT 
for the design portion of the Douglas Avenue Deer Creek Bridge Project.  
 
On August 22, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution 2022-27 authorizing the 
acceptance of a grant award from the Local Bridge Program through ODOT for replacing 
the Deer Creek Douglas Avenue Bridge. 
 
On January 22, 2024, the City Council executed Amendment No. 1 to the Douglas Avenue 
Deer Creek IGA with ODOT for the construction portion of the project. 
 
On March 25, 2024, the City Council executed Change Order No. 1 to the Douglas 
Avenue Deer Creek IGA with ODOT for the construction portion of the project.  
 
B. Analysis.  
In March 2019, the City of Roseburg was awarded a grant through the ODOT Local Bridge 
Program to design a replacement bridge on Douglas Avenue over Deer Creek. 
Amendment No. 1 to the IGA with ODOT executed in January had estimated construction 
costs scoped in 2018. ODOT recently received a revised Change Order No. 1 requesting 
additional match funds to cover the overage cost in engineering services. This will be a 
federally funded project led by ODOT and scheduled to receive funding in Federal Fiscal 
Year 2026.  

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


DEPARTMENT ITEMS D 
07/22/2024 

The bridge is a seven-span steel rolled girder bridge that is functionally obsolete due to 
its width. It has a sufficiency rating of 26.1 out of 100 and a load restriction of 32 tons. 
The bridge rails are substandard. It is scour critical with a Scour Appraisal of 3 (SC-
Unstable) with exposed footing. The Deck Appraisal is a 2 (Intolerable) and is in poor 
condition, progressing with exposed rebar, spalls, cracks with rust staining, and 
efflorescence in the deck soffit. The girders have fatigue-prone details, and all beams sag 
slightly. The bridge also shows signs of high water on some beams.  

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   
Revised Change Order No. 1 decreases the total project cost to $12,407,725, but 
increases the required City match funds from $1,297,934 to $1,504,810. The City has 
reserved approximately $1.3 million in Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) 
funds for the match. There is $1 million programmed in the Urban Renewal Capital 
Improvement fund this fiscal year. This funding could be used to cover the additional 
match or more, freeing up the Transportation Fund for other projects. 

 
D. Timing Considerations.   
If authorized, the revised change order will be executed as soon as practicable. 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The Council has the following options: 

1. Authorize execution of revised Change Order No. 1 to the Douglas Avenue Deer 
Creek Bridge Construction Project; or  

2. Request additional information. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The existing bridge is structurally deficient, functionally obsolete, and load-restricted. The 
ODOT Local Bridge Program is the only viable funding source for this bridge project. This 
item was discussed at the Public Works Commission meeting on July 11, 2024, and the 
Commission recommended the Council authorize execution of the revised change order. 
Staff concurs with the recommendation. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO AUTHORIZE EXECUTION OF REVISED CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO THE 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH ODOT FOR THE DOUGLAS AVENUE 
DEER CREEK BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION PROJECT INCREASING THE CITY’S 
MATCH TO $1,504,810.”  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
None 



INFORMATIONAL A 
07/22/2024 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
CITY MANAGER ACTIVITY REPORT 

 

Meeting Date:  July 22, 2024                            Agenda Section: Informational 
Department:  Administration         Staff Contact:  Nikki Messenger, City Manager 
www.cityofroseburg.org      Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6866 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
At each meeting, the City Manager provides the City Council with a report on the activities 
of the City, along with an update on operational/personnel related issues which may be 
of interest to the Council. These reports shall be strictly informational and will not require 
any action on the Council’s part. The reports are intended to provide a mechanism to 
solicit feedback and enhance communication between the Council, City Manager and City 
Staff. For your July 22, 2024 meeting, the following items are included:   
 

• Department Head Meeting Agendas  
• Tentative Future Council Agenda Items 
• City Manager Friday Messages 

 
 

  

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


INFORMATIONAL A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1 

 
 
 
 

Agenda 
Department Head Meeting 

Public Safety Center Umpqua Room 
June 25, 2024 - 10:00 a.m. 

 
 

1. June 24, 2024 City Council Meeting Synopsis 
 

2. July 22, 2024 City Council Meeting Agenda 
 
3. Review Tentative Future Council Meeting Agendas 
 
4. Documents, Events, or Grants to review and/or sign: 

A. Community Event Application – Summer Arts Festival  
B. Community Event Application – UVTC Annual Meeting  
 

5. Discussion Items 
 
 

 
 

  



INFORMATIONAL A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1 

 
 
 
 

Agenda 
Department Head Meeting 

Public Safety Center Umpqua Room 
July 1, 2024 - 10:00 a.m. 

 
 
1. July 22, 2024 City Council Meeting Agenda 

 
2. Review Tentative Future Council Meeting Agendas 

 
3. Documents, Events, or Grants to review and/or sign: 

A. Community Event – Roseburg Alliance Church 
 

4. Discussion Items 
A. Portland Homeless Ordinance 
 

5. Employee Service Pins 
A. Gary Klopfenstein – Police Department – 25 years 
B. Dan Allen – Police Department – 15 years 
C. Rex Benzel – Public Works Water – 15 years 
D. Tony Yazzolino – Public Works Water – 10 years 
E. Ward Deffebach – Library – 5 years 
F. Brenda Weber – Library – 5 years 

 
 

 

  



INFORMATIONAL A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1 

 
 
 
 

Agenda 
Department Head Meeting 

Public Safety Center Umpqua Room 
July 9, 2024 - 10:00 a.m. 

 
 

1. July 22, 2024 City Council Meeting Agenda 
 
2. Review Tentative Future Council Meeting Agendas 
 
3. Documents, Events, or Grants to review and/or sign: 

A. Community Event – Thrive Umpqua Longest Table 
 

4. Discussion Items 
 
 

  



INFORMATIONAL A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1 

 
 
 
 

Agenda 
Department Head Meeting 

Public Safety Center Umpqua Room 
July 15, 2024 - 10:00 a.m. 

 
 

1. IT Updates and Questions – Christine, Systech  
 

2. July 22, 2024 City Council Meeting Agenda 
 
3. Review Tentative Future Council Meeting Agendas 
 
4. Documents, Events, or Grants to review and/or sign: 

A. Loud Speaker Permit: Roseburg Alliance Church 
 

5. Discussion Items 
 
 

 
 

 

 



 
INFORMATIONAL A 

ATTACHMENT NO. 2 

1 

 
TENTATIVE FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA 

Unscheduled 
• UTRAN Presentation 
• VA Director Presentation 
• Council Goals Adoption  
• 2024-2029 Capital Improvement Plan Update 
• Urban Campground Discussion 
• City Manager Evaluation 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
July 29, 2024 – Work Session 
Council Matters 
A. Parking Enforcement Discussion 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
August 12, 2024 
Mayor Reports 
B. City Manager Evaluation Process Adoption 
Consent Agenda 
A. July 22, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
B. July 29, 2024 Work Session Minutes 
Public Hearings 
A. Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan 
B. CDBG Close Out – Roseburg Regional Housing Rehabilitation Grant 
Ordinances 
A. Ordinance No. 3603 – Legislative Amendment: Roseburg File No. CPA-23-002 (Urban 

Growth Boundary Swap), First Reading 
B. Ordinance No. 3604 – Camping, First Reading 
Department Items 
A. Bid Award – Taxiway A Extension 25GR01 
B. Construction Management Project Task Order Authorization for Taxiway A Extension 
Informational 
A. City Manager Activity Report 
B. Quarterly Financial Report 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
August 26, 2024 
Consent Agenda 
A. August 12, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Public Hearings 
A. Flail Mower/Tractor Purchase 
Ordinances 
A. Ordinance No. 3603 – Legislative Amendment: Roseburg File No. CPA-23-002 (Urban 

Growth Boundary Swap), Second Reading 
B. Ordinance No. 3604 – Camping, Second Reading 
Informational 
A. City Manager Activity Report 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
September 9, 2024 
Consent Agenda 
A. August 26, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Informational 
A. City Manager Activity Report 

 



 
INFORMATIONAL A 

ATTACHMENT NO. 2 

2 

__________________________________________________________________________
September 23, 2024 
Consent Agenda 
A. September 9, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Informational 
A. City Manager Activity Report 
October 14, 2024 
Consent Agenda 
A. September 23, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Department Items 
A. 2024 Oregon Public Library Statistical Report 
Informational 
A. City Manager Activity Report 
__________________________________________________________________________
October 28, 2024 
Consent Agenda 
A. October 14, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Informational 
A. City Manager Activity Report 
November 2024 (to be determined) 
Mayor Reports 
A. Veterans Day and Military Families Month Proclamation 
Consent Agenda 
B. October 28, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Informational 
A. City Manager Activity Report 
November 11, 2024 Veterans Day 
 
December 9, 2024 
Consent Agenda 
A. November 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Resolutions 
A. Resolution Setting a New Council Reimbursement Amount for 2025 
Informational 
A. City Manager Activity Report 
January 13, 2025 
Mayor Reports 
A. State of the City Address 
B. Commission Chair Appointments 
C. Commission Appointments 
Commission Reports/Council Ward Reports 
A. Election of Council President 
Consent Agenda 
A. December 9, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Informational 
A. City Manager Activity Report 
B. Municipal Court Quarterly Report 



INFORMATIONAL A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 3 

City Manager Updates  
July 3, 2024  

  
• As you are probably aware, the Supreme Court ruling came out on the Grants Pass v. 

Johnson case last Friday.  The ruling reversed and remanded the Grants Pass decision, and 
concluded that the Eighth Amendment did not apply, which was also the basis for the 
“Boise” decision.  Staff is working closely with the City Attorney to analyze the decision and 
will be bringing more information forward soon.  While state law does regulate how cities 
handle camp cleanups and time/place/manner regulations, we believe there are things not 
codified that were previously law under Boise and/or Grants Pass that are no longer 
applicable.  CIS has a webinar scheduled next Tuesday that staff will attend. More to 
come…  
   

• There has been quite a bit of fire activity on “Reservoir Hill” lately.  Last week, the Fire 
Department performed controlled burn/training exercises on the City’s property.  This 
week, they have had to respond three times to fires.  While the cause(s) are still under 
investigation, this week’s fires appear to be human caused and/or re-ignition of the human 
caused fires.    

  
• I have received numerous inquiries regarding a cooling center for this weekend.  As a 

reminder, the City has not operated any of the cooling or warming centers in the past.  We 
have provided financial support and/or purchased and delivered supplies when a non-profit 
has opened one.   Our communications specialist has also worked hard to help get the 
word out if one is opening.  This week, I reached out to both UCAN and the Roseburg 
Senior Center.  The Senior Center indicated they will not be reopening as a cooling center 
at all.  UCAN indicated they could not do one this weekend but would have staff delivering 
water over the weekend.   Anyone is welcome at the Library during open hours – Friday 
and Saturday 10 am – 2 pm.   

  
• The UCC Board did not agree to the land transfer that was discussed at the Council’s June 

10 meeting – involving the Wooley Center and two City parking lots.  Dr. Pokrandt and I will 
get back together in the near future to discuss their concerns and see if there is a path 
forward.    

  
• The Airport Commission met on June 20 and recommended awarding the Taxiway A 

Extension Project.  It appears the FAA will be funding the project in the current federal 
fiscal year.  This situation has been unusually tumultuous, and while we have not received 
an official grant offer, all indications are that we will.     

  
• The Planning Commission met on July 1 and recommended adopting the Douglas County 

Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan as part of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.   
  

• The Parks Commission met this morning and discussed the proposed 5-Year Capital 
Improvement Plan for the Park Improvement and Stewart Trust funds.  The Commission 
recommended the Council approve those sections of the plan.    



INFORMATIONAL A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 3 

  
• Last Monday night, there was a question about Mr. Woodard’s development plans 

regarding homeless sites near the Micelli Park area.  I found the following information in a 
March 25 email to Council –   

The Community Development Department approved one of Mr. Woodard’s two 
applications for additional tent camp sites.   The registered site will be on a vacant 
parcel on Micelli Street across from Micelli Park.  The site will not be fully approved 
until Mr. Woodard completes the necessary improvements such as perimeter fencing 
and other requirements outlined in the adopted policy.  The second site has not been 
approved. It is located on Flint Street.  The City did a phase 1 environmental study on 
this parcel in 2017.  The study indicates there may be surface level contamination on 
the property, so staff has requested proof that the site has been remediated prior to 
registering it as a tent camp site.    

Last Thursday, Mr. Woodard sent an email indicating he is hiring Land & Water  
Environmental to address the environmental concerns on the Flint Street site.  I drove by 
on Monday and it does not appear that any work has started on the Micelli site.    

• We have officially transitioned to the @roseburgor.gov email addresses.  The 
@cityofroseburg.org addresses will continue to work, but outgoing emails will appear with 
the new address.  Multi-factor authentication will begin launching later this month.  If you 
have issues, please let Grace or Amy know. 

• City offices will be closed on Thursday, July 4th, to observe the holiday.  I will be off on 
Friday as well. 

• Meetings next week: 
o City Council Tour at UCC - Monday, July 8 @ 5 pm – Umpqua Community College o 
Public Works Commission -- Thursday, July 11 @ 3:30 pm – City Council Chambers 

 
 



INFORMATIONAL B 
07/22/2024 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
MUNICIPAL COURT QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

Meeting Date:  July 22, 2024 Agenda Section: Department Reports 
Department: Municipal Court      Staff Contact:  Jason Mahan 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-673-0171 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
 
At the request of City Council, a report on the court’s case volume and program revenues 
has been presented on a quarterly basis since July 2012.  This report is the latest of the 
quarterly reports to have been provided in fulfillment of the Council’s desire to receive 
regular updates on court operations and covers.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Analysis.  
 

1ST 2ND  3RD  4TH  YTD  PRIOR
COURT CASE TOTALS QTR QTR QTR QTR TOTAL YEAR
CRIMES 316      235      215      288      1,054   1,173   
TRAFFIC CRIMES 88        72        118      122      400      258      
TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS 716      551      601      1,624   3,492   3,239   
NON-TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS 92        144      79        278      593      176      
TOTAL 1,212   1,002   1,013   2,312   5,539   4,846   

 
 
After the fourth quarter of the 2023-24 fiscal year, total cases were up 14% from the prior 
year.  By category, traffic crimes, traffic violations and non-traffic violations increased by 
55%, 8% and 237% while crimes decreased by -10% respectively.      

 
 

1ST 2ND 3RD   4TH PRIOR 
BUDGET QTR QTR QTR QTR YTD YTD

COURT REVENUES 2023-24 2024 2021 2021 2021 TOTAL TOTAL
FINES 295,000$    58,377$      54,371$      60,446$     74,385$      247,578$    259,373$    
COURT COSTS 23,000        8,871          6,425          3,068         4,204          22,568        27,905        
CRT APPT ATTORNEY 9,000          1,781          2,385          1,135         1,424          6,725          8,662          
   TOTAL 327,000$    69,029$      63,181$      64,649$     80,013$      276,872$    295,940$     
 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


INFORMATIONAL B 
07/22/2024 

 
After the fourth quarter of the 2023-24 fiscal year, total court revenues were down -6% 
from the prior year. Fines and collections, court costs and court appointed attorney 
revenues decreased by -5%, -19% and -22% respectively.   
 
On a budgetary basis, revenues are 85% of budget after the fourth quarter of the fiscal 
year.   
 
 
CLOSING REMARKS 

The court has seen a significant increase in non-traffic violations.  These non-traffic 
violations are primarily related to the issuance of citations for prohibited camping by the 
Roseburg Police Department.  The City Prosecutor has elected to file criminal Failure to 
Appear charges if a defendant fails to appear on a violation proceeding involving the 
Roseburg Municipal Code.  Most of the individuals who are cited for prohibited camping 
are showing up for their court appearances.  Along with the prohibited camping violations 
our court receives many criminal cases for offensive litter and littering near waters.  These 
criminal cases are directly related to prohibited camping.   

Individuals with significant mental health issues continue to be a large part of our in 
custody criminal docket.  As in the past, I continue to refer these individuals to Adapt 
Mental Health and place them on bench probation.  I continue to require them to come 
back to court to make sure they are following through with court orders.  The number of 
individuals who comply remains low and many of these individuals are rearrested on new 
criminal charges before they are supposed to return to court on their probation. As I have 
stated in previous court reports, these individuals are dealing with such significant mental 
health issues that we can’t even transport them to the jail arraignment room at the 
Douglas County Jail and we must go over to the jail and see the defendant at their jail 
cell.   

 As always, I appreciate the opportunity to serve as the Roseburg Municipal Court 
Judge.  If you have any further questions, please reach out to me. 

Sincerely, 

Jason Mahan  


	- 07-22-2024 Agenda
	060A - 06-24-2024 City Council Meeting Minutes
	060B - AIS - OLCC New Outlet Application - The Majestic Theater, LLC
	060B1 - Attachment No. 1 - OLCC New Outlet Application -The Majestic Theater, LLC
	060C - AIS - OLCC New Outlet Application - Muchas Gracias Mexican Food - Roseburg
	060C1 - Attachment No. 1 - OLCC New Outlet Application - Muchas Gracias Mexican Food - Roseburg
	060D - AIS - OLCC New Outlet Application - The Rosebud Theatre
	060D1 - Attachment No. 1 - OLCC New Outlet Application - Rosebud Entertainment, LLC dba The Rosebud Theatre
	060E - AIS - Resolution No. 2024-15 Correcting Airport Facility Fees
	060E1 - Attachment No. 1 - Resolution No. 2024-15
	060F - AIS - FAA Grant Acceptance - Extend Taxiway A - Phase II Construction - Resolution No. 2024-16
	060F1 - Attachment No. 1 - Resolution No. 2024-16
	070A- AIS - An Ordinance Amending the Roseburg Urban Growth Boundary (UGB), De-Annexing Property, Amending the Comprehensive Plan Map
	070A1 - Exhibit A - May 20, 2024 Roseburg Planning Commission Findings of Fact and Order File No. CPA-23-002
	070A2 - Exhibit B - April 15, 2024 Urban Growth Boundary Exchange Proposal Staff Report and Findings (AKA Application)
	070A3 - Exhibit C - Appendices
	070A4 - Exhibit D - Letters of Support
	070A5 - Exhibit E - Letter of Concern
	080A - AIS - SE Stephens Water Main Replacement Project Bid Award Recommendation - Project No. 23WA12
	080A1 - Attachment No. 1 - Engineer's Letter of Recommendation
	080B - AIS - SE Douglas Avenue Pavement Repairs Project Bid Award Recommendation - 24PW09
	080C - AIS - Intergovermental Agreement with Roseburg Urban Sanitary Authority - SE Stephens Water Main Replacement Project No. 23WA12
	080D - AIS - Douglas Avenue Deer Creek Bridge Project - Intergovernmental Agreement - Revised Change Order No. 1
	Informational A - CM Activity Report
	Informational A1 - Department Head Meetings
	Informational A2 - Future Tentative Council Agendas
	Informational A3 - City Manager Friday Messages
	Informational B - Municipal Court Quarterly Report



